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3.000 FEDERALACQUISITION REGULATION

(2) Disciplinary measures for persons violating the
standards of conduct.

Subpart 3.9—Whistleblower Protections for
Contractor Employees

3.900 Scope of subpart. (b) Requirements for employee financial disclosure and
3.901 Definifors. restrictions on private employment for former Government
3.902 Appicabity. employees are in @fe of Personnel Management and

3.903 Polcy. agency regulations implementing Public Law 95-521,
3.904 Procedures for fling complaints. which amended 18 U.S.C. 207.

3.905 Procedures for investigating complaints.

3.906 Remedies. 3.102 [Reserved]

3.000 Scope of pat. 3.103 Independent pricing.

This part prescribes policies and procedures for avoiding o o
improper business practices and personal conflicts of inter 3-103-1 Solicitation provision.

est and for dealing with their apparent or actual occurrence. 11€ contracting dicer shall insert the provision at
52.203-2, Certificate of Independent Price Determination,

in solicitations when a firm-fixed-price contract or fixed-
price contract with economic price adjustment is
contemplated, unless—

(a) The acquisition is to be made under the simplified
3.101-1 General. acquisition procedures in Part 13;

Government business shall be conducted in a manner (b) [Reserved]
above reproach and, except as authorized by statute-or reg (€) The solicitation is a request for technical proposals
ulation, with complete impartiality and with preferential under two-step sealed bidding procedures; or
treatment for nonélransactions relating to the expenditure ~ (d) The solicitation is for utility services for which rates
of public funds require the highest degree of public trust andare set by law or regulation.
an impeccable standard of conduthe general rule is to
avoid strictly any conflict of interest or even the appearance3.103-2 Evaluating the cettification.
of a conflict of interest in Government-contractor relation (&) Evaluation guidelines (1) None of the following, in
ships. While many Federal laws and regulations place and of itself, constitutes “disclosure” as it is used in-sub
restrictions on the actions of Government personnel, theirparagraph (a)(2) of the Certificate of Independent Price
official conduct must, in addition, be such that they would Determination (hereaftethe certificate):
have no reluctance to make a full public disclosure of their (i) The fact that a firm has published price lists,

Subpart 3.1—Safeguards

3.101 Standards of conduct.

actions.

3.101-2 Solicitation and acceptance of gratuities by
Government personnel.

rates, or tarfs covering items being acquired by the
Government.

(i) The fact that a firm has informed prospective
customers of proposed or pending publication of new or

As a rule, no Government employee may solicit or revised price lists for items being acquired by the

accept, directly or indirectlyany gratuity gift, favor, enter

tainment, loan, or anything of monetary value from anyone

Government.
(iii) The fact that a firm has sold the same items to

who (a) has or is seeking to obtain Government businesscommercial customers at the same prices beifegeaf to

with the employea agency(b) conducts activities that are
regulated by the employeeagencyor (c) has interests that
may be substantially fa&fcted by the performance or ron
performance of the employse’'oficial duties. Certain
limited exceptions are authorized in agency regulations.

3.101-3 Agency regulations.
(a) Agencies are required by Executive Ord&R22 of

the Government.

(2) For the purpose of subparagraph (b)(2) of the cer
tificate, an individual may use a blanket authorization to act
as an agent for the person(s) responsible for determining the
offered prices if—

(i) The proposed contract to which the certificate
applies is clearly within the scope of the authorization; and
(ii) The person giving the authorization is the-per

May 8, 1965, and 5 CFR 735 to prescribe “Standards ofson within the deror's oganization who is responsible for

Conduct."These agency standards contain—
(1) Agency-authorized exceptions to 3.101-2; and
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PART 3—IMPROPER BUSINESS PRACTICES ANDPERSONAL CONFLICTS OF INTEREST

3.104-3

(3) If an ofer is submitted jointly by two or more

(b) Agency employees are reminded that there are other

concerns, the certification provided by the representative ofstatutes and regulations that deal with the same or relatec

each concern applies only to the activities of that concern.

(b) Rejection of offers suspected of being collusite

prohibited conduct, for example—
(1) The ofer or acceptance of a bribe or gratuity is

If the offeror deleted or modified subparagraph (a)(1) or prohibited by 18 U.S.C. 201, 10 U.S.C. 2207, 5 U.S.C.
(a)(3) or paragraph (b) of the certificate, the contracting 7353, and 5 CFR Part 2635;

officer shall reject the ¢éror's bid or proposal.
(2) If the oferor deleted or modified subparagraph
(a)(2) of the certificate, the fefror must have furnished with

(2) Section 208 ofitle 18, United States Code, and
5 CFR Part 2635 preclude a Government employee from
participating personally and substantially in any particular

its offer a signed statement of the circumstances of the dis matter that would &ct the financial interests of any person

closure of prices contained in the bid or propoBaé chief
of the contracting dite shall review the altered certificate

from whom the employee is seeking employment;
(3) Post-employment restrictions are covered by 18

and the statement and shall determine, in writing, whethery s.c. 207 and 5 CFR Parts 2637 and 2641, which prohibit

the disclosure was made for the purpose or had thet ef
restricting competition. If the determination is positive, the

certain activities by former Government employees, inrclud
ing representation of a contractor before the Government in

bid or proposal shall be rejected; if it is negative, the bid or rg|ation to any contract or other particular matter involving

proposal shall be considered for award.
(3) Whenever an &r is rejected under subparagraph

specific parties on which the former employee participated
personally and substantially while employed by the

(b)(2) or (b)(2) of this section, or the certificate is suspected Government:

of being false, the contractingfiokr shall report the situa
tion to theAttorney General in accordance with 3.303.

(4) The determination made under subparagraph

(b)(2) of this section shall not prevent or inhibit the prose
cution of any criminal or civil actions involving the

occurrences or transactions to which the certificate relates.

3.103-3 The need forfur ther certifications.

A contractor that properly executed the certificate before
award does not have to submit a separate certificate wit
each proposal to perform a work order or similar ordering
instrument issued pursuant to the terms of the contract,

where the Governmestrequirements cannot be met from
another source.

3.104 Procurement integrity.

3.104-1 General.

(a) This FAR section 3.104 implements section 27 of the
Office of Federal Procurement Poliggt (41 U.S.C. 423),
as amended by section 814 of the Fistedr 1990/1991
National DefensduthorizationAct, Public Law 101-189,
section 815 of the Fiscatear 1991 National Defense
AuthorizationAct, Public Law 101-510, and section 4304
of the Fiscalrear 1996 National DefengeithorizationAct,
Public Law 104-106 (hereinaftethe Ofice of Federal
Procurement Policct, as amended, is referred to as “the

h

(4) Parts 14 and 15 place restrictions on the release ol
information related to procurements and other contractor
information which must be protected under 18 U.S.C. 1905;

(5) Other laws such as the Privaggt (5 U.S.C.
552a) and thd@rade SecretAct (18 U.S.C. 1905) may pre
clude release of information both before and after award
(see 3.104-5); and

(6) Use of nonpublic information to further an
employees private interest or that of another and engaging
In a financial transaction using nonpublic information are
covered by 5 CFR 2635.703.

3.104-2 Applicability .

(a) The restrictions at 3.104-4(a) and (b) apply begin
ning January 1, 1997, to the conduct of every Federal
agency procurement using competitive procedures for the
acquisition of supplies or services from non-Federal sources
using appropriated funds.

(b) The requirements of 3.104-4(c) apply beginning
January 1, 1997, in connection with every Federal agency
procurement using competitive procedures, for a contract
expected to exceed the simplified acquisition threshold.
Such requirements do not apply after the contract has beer
awarded or the procurement has been canceled.

(c) The post-employment restrictions at 3.104-4(d)
apply to any former ditial of a Federal agencfor services

Act”). Agencies may supplement 3.104 and any clausesprovided or decisions made on or after January 1, 1997.

(d) Former dicials of a Federal agency whose employ

required by 3.104, and may use agency specific definitions
to identify individuals who occupy positions specified in ment by a Federal agency ended before January 1, 1997, ar
3.104-4(d)(2)(ii). Such supplementation and definitions subject to the restrictions imposed by 41 U.S.C. 423 as it
must be approved at a level not lower than the senioer pro existed before Public Law 104-106. Solely for the purpose

curement executive of the agenapless a higher level of
approval is required by law for that agency

of continuing those restrictions on thosdiails to the
extent they were imposed prior to January 1, 1997, the pro
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3.104-3 FEDERALACQUISITION REGULATION

visions of 41 U.S.C. 423 as it existed before Public Law research programs, each proposal received by an agency

104-106 apply through December 31, 1998. shall constitute a separate procurement for purposes of the
Act.
3.104-3 Definitions. “In excess of $10,000,000” means—
As used in this section— (1) The value, or estimated value, at the time of
“Agency ethics dicial” means the designated agency award, of the contract, including all options;
ethics oficial described in 5 CFR 2638.201 and any other (2) The total estimated value at the time of award of
designated person, including— all orders under an indefinite-delivempdefinite-quantity
(1) Deputy ethics dicials described in 5 CFR  or requirements contract;
2638.204, to whom authority under 3.104-7 has been dele (3) Any multiple award schedule contract unless the
gated by the designated agency ethifisiaf, and contracting dicer documents a lower estimate;
(2) Alternate designated agency ethicdiciéls (4) The value of a delivery ordetask orderor an
described in 5 CFR 2638.202(b). order under a Basic Orderidgreement;
“Compensation” means wages, salaries, honoraria; com (5) The amount paid or to be paid in settlement of a
missions, professional fees, and any other form of claim; or
compensation, provided directly or indirectly for services (6) The estimated monetary value of negotiated-over

rendered. Compensation is indirectly provided if it is paid head or other rates when applied to the Government portion
to an entity other than the individual, specifically in of the applicable allocation base.

exchange for services provided by the individual. “Official” means:
“Contract,” for purposes of the post-employment restric () An officer, as defined in 5 U.S.C. 2104.

tions at 3.104-4(d), includes both competitively awarded (2) An employee, as defined in 5 U.S.C. 2105.

and non-competitively awarded contracts. (3) A member of the uniformed services, as defined in
“Contractor bid or proposal information” means any of 5 U.S.C. 2101(3).

the following information submitted to a Federal agency as (4) A special Government employee, as defined in 18

part of or in connection with a bid or proposal to enter into U.S.C. 202.
a Federal agency procurement contract, if that information  “Participating personally and substantially in a Federal
has not been previously made available to the public er dis agency procurement” is defined as follows:
closed publicly: (1) “Participating personally and substantially in a
(1) Cost or pricing data (as defined by 10 U.S.C. Federal agency procurement” means active and significant
2306a(h) with respect to procurements subject to that secinvolvement of the individual in any of the following activ
tion, and section 304A(h) of the Federal Property and ities directly related to that procurement:
Administrative Service#ct of 1949 (41 U.S.C. 254b(h)), (i) Drafting, reviewing, or approving the specifica
with respect to procurements subject to that section). tion or statement of work for the procurement.
(2) Indirect costs and direct labor rates. (ii) Preparing or developing the solicitation.
(3) Proprietary information about manufacturing (i) Evaluating bids or proposals, or selecting a
processes, operations, or techniques marked by the contracsource.
tor in accordance with applicable law or regulation. (iv) Negotiating price or terms and conditions of
(4) Information marked by the contractor as “contrac the contract.
tor bid or proposal information” in accordance with (v) Reviewing and approving the award of the-con
applicable law or regulation. tract.
(5) Information marked in accordance with 52.215- (2) “Participating personally” means participating
12. directly, and includes the direct and active supervision of a
“Decision to award a subcontract or modification of-sub subordinate's participation in the matter
contract” means a decision to designate award to a (3) “Participating substantially” means that the
particular source. employee's involvement is of significance to the matter
“Federal agency” has the meaning provided such term inSubstantial participation requires more thdiicizl respon
section 3 of the Federal Property aAdministrative sibility, knowledge, perfunctory involvement, or
ServicedAct of 1949 (40 U.S.C. 472). involvement on an administrative or peripheral issue.
“Federal agency procurement” means the acquisition (by Participation may be substantial even though it is not-deter
using competitive procedures and awarding a contract) ofminative of the outcome of a particular matt&rinding of
goods or services (including construction) from non-Federal substantiality should be based not only on tiferedevoted
sources by a Federal agency using appropriated funds. Foo a matterbut on the importance of thefaft. While a
broad agency announcements and small business innovativeeries of peripheral involvements may be insubstantial, the
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PART 3—IMPROPER BUSINESS PRACTICES ANDPERSONAL CONFLICTS OF INTEREST 3.104-4

single act of approving or participating in a critical step may (10) Other information marked aSduce Selection
be substantial. Howevethe review of procurement docu  Information—See AR 3.104 based on a case-by-case
ments solely to determine compliance with regulatory determination by the head of the agency or designee, or the
administrative, or budgetary procedures, does not constitutecontracting dicer, that its disclosure would jeopardize the
substantial participation in a procurement. integrity or successful completion of the Federal agency
(4) Generallyan individual will not be considered to procurement to which the information relates.

have participated personally and substantially in a precure
ment solely by participating in the following activities: 3.104-4 Statutory and related  prohibitions,

(i) Agency level boards, panels, or other advisory  restrictions, and requirements.
committees that review program milestones or evaluate and (a) Prohibition on disclosing mcurement information
make recommendations regarding alternative technologiegsubsection 27(a) of th&ct). (1) A person described in
or approaches for satisfying broad agency level missions omparagraph (a)(2) of this subsection shall not, other than as
objectives. provided by lawknowingly disclose contractor bid or pro

(i) The performance of general, technical, engi posal information or source selection information before the
neering, or scientific &rt having broad application not award of a Federal agency procurement contract to which
directly associated with a particular procurement, notwith the information relates. (See 3.104-5(a).)

standing that such general, technical, engineering, or (2) Paragraph (a)(1) of this subsection applies to any
scientific efort subsequently may be incorporated into a person who—
particular procurement. (i) Is a present or former fidial of the United
(iii) Clerical functions supporting the conduct of a States, or a person who is acting or has acted for or on
particular procurement. behalf of, or who is advising or has advised the United
(iv) For procurements to be conducted under the States with respect to, a Federal agency procurement; and
procedures of OMB Circulak-76, participation in manage (i) By virtue of that ofice, employment, or rela

ment studies, preparation of in-house cost estimatestionship, has or had access to contractor bid or proposal
preparation of “most &tient omganization” analyses, and information or source selection information.

furnishing of data or technical support to be used by others (b) Prohibition on obtaining prcurement information

in the development of performance standards, statements ofsubsection 27(b) of thict). A person shall not, other than
work, or specifications. as provided by layknowingly obtain contractor bid or pro

“Source selection evaluation board” means any board, posal information or source selection information before the
team, council, or other group that evaluates bids or propos award of a Federal agency procurement contract to which
als. the information relates.

“Source selection information” means any of the foHow (c) Actions equired of agency officials when contacted
ing information which is prepared for use by a Federal by offeors regaiding non-Federal employment (subsection
agency for the purpose of evaluating a bid or proposal t027(c) of theAct). If an agency dicial who is participating
enter into a Federal agency procurement contract, if thatpersonally and substantially in a Federal agency precure
information has not been previously made available to thement for a contract in excess of the simplified acquisition
public or disclosed publicly: threshold contacts or is contacted by a person who is-a bid

(1) Bid prices submitted in response to a Federal der or oferor in that Federal agency procurement regarding
agency invitation for bids, or lists of those bid prices before possible non-Federal employment for thdtctdl, the ofi-

bid opening. cial shall—
(2) Proposed costs or prices submitted in response to (1) Promptly report the contact in writing to théi of
a Federal agency solicitation, or lists of those proposedcial's supervisor and to the designated agency etHicsabf
costs or prices. (or designee) of the agency in which theficil is
(3) Source selection plans. employed; and
(4) Technical evaluation plans. (2)() Reject the possibility of non-Federal employ
(5) Technical evaluations of proposals. ment; or
(6) Cost or price evaluations of proposals. (i) Disqualify himself or herself from further per

(7) Competitive range determinations that identify sonal and substantial participation in that Federal agency
proposals that have a reasonable chance of being selectgagtocurement (see 3.104-6) until such time as the agency ha:

for award of a contract. authorized the ditial to resume participation in such pro
(8) Rankings of bids, proposals, or competitors. curement, in accordance with the requirements of 18 U.S.C.
(9) Reports and evaluations of source selection pan 208 and applicable agency regulations, on the grounds
els, boards, or advisory councils. that—
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(A) The person is no longer a bidder cfeobr
in that Federal agency procurement; or
(B) All discussions with the bidder orfefor
regarding possible non-Federal employment have termi
nated without an agreement or
employment.
(d) Prohibition on former official's acceptance of com
pensation fom a contractor (subsection 27(d) of tAet).
(1) A former oficial of a Federal agency may not accept
compensation from a contractor as an employefigeqf
director or consultant of the contractor within a period of
one year after such formerfiofal—
(i) Served, at the time of selection of the contrac
tor or the award of a contract to that contragcts the
procuring contracting fiter, the source selection authority

arrangement for

(b) Contractor bid or proposal information and source
selection information shall be protected from unauthorized
disclosure in accordance with 14.401, 1%,415.413,
applicable lawand agency regulations.

(c) In determining whether particular information is
source selection information, see the definition in 3.104-3
and consult with agencyfifials as necessaryindividuals
responsible for preparing material that may be source-selec
tion information under paragraph (10) of the definition shall
mark the cover page and each page that the individual
believes contains source selection information with the leg
end “Souce Selection Information—SeAR 3.104
Although the information in paragraphs (1) through (9) of
the definition in 3.104-3 is considered to be source selection
information whether or not marked, all reasonabferef

a member of a source selection evaluation board, or theshg|| he made to mark such material with the same legend.

chief of a financial or technical evaluation team in & pro

curement in which that contractor was selected for award of

a contract in excess of $10,000,000;
(i) Served as the program mangggeputy pre
gram manageror administrative contracting fafer for a

contract in excess of $10,000,000 awarded to that centrac

tor; or
(iii) Personally made for the Federal agency—
(A) Adecision to award a contract, subcontract,

modification of a contract or subcontract, or a task order or

delivery order in excess of $10,000,000 to that contractor;
(B) A decision to establish overhead or other

rates applicable to a contract or contracts for that contracto

that are valued in excess of $10,000,000;
(C) A decision to approve issuance of a contract

payment or payments in excess of $10,000,000 to that con

tractor; or
(D) A decision to pay or settle a claim in excess
of $10,000,000 with that contractor
(2) Nothing in paragraph (d)(1) of this subsection
may be construed to prohibit a formefigal of a Federal

r

(d) Except as provided in subparagraph (d)(4) of this
subsection, if the contractingfioer believes that informa
tion marked as proprietary is not propriefanformation
otherwise marked as contractor bid or proposal information
is not contractor bid or proposal information, or information
marked in accordance with 52.215-12 is inappropriately
marked, the contractor that hafixad the marking shall be
notified in writing and given an opportunity to justify the
marking.

(1) If the contractor agrees that the marking is net jus
tified, or does not respond within the time specified in the
notice, the contracting fi€er may remove the marking and
the information may be released.

(2) If, after reviewing any justification submitted by
the contractqrthe contracting diter determines that the
marking is not justified, the contractingfioér shall notify
the contractor in writing.

(3) Information marked by the contractor as propri
etary otherwise marked as contractor bid or proposal
information, or marked in accordance with 52.215-12, shall

agency from accepting compensation from any division or N0t be released until—

affiliate of a contractor that does not produce the same or

(i) The review of the contractor's justification has

similar products or services as the entity of the contractorPeen completed; or

that is responsible for the contract referred to in paragraph

(d)(2) of this subsection.

3.104-5 Disclosure, protection, and marking of
contractor bid or proposal information and souce
selection information.

(a) Except as specifically provided for in this subsection,
no person or other entity may disclose contractor bid or pro
posal information or source selection information to any

(i) The period specified for the contractor's
response has elapsed, whichever is earli¢rereafter the
contracting dicer may release the information.

(4) With respect to technical data that are marked pro
prietary by a contractprthe contracting déicer shall
generally follow the procedures in 27.404(h).

(e) Nothing in this section restricts or prohibits—

(1) A contractor from disclosing its own bid or pro

posal information or the recipient from receiving that

person other than a person authorized, in accordance wittinformation;

applicable agency regulations or procedures, by the head of

the agency or designee, or the contractifigerf to receive
such information.
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PART 3—IMPROPER BUSINESS PRACTICES ANDPERSONAL CONFLICTS OF INTEREST 3.104-7
tract award, unless the Federal agency plans to resume ththe agency dicial's immediate supervisoAs a minimum,

procurement; the notice shall—
(3) Individual meetings between a Federal agency (1) Identify the procurement;
official and an dferor or potential déror for, or a recipient (2) Describe the nature of the agencijcadl's par

of, a contract or subcontract under a Federal ageney proticipation in the procurement and specify the approximate
curement, provided that unauthorized disclosure or receiptdates or time period of participation; and
of contractor bid or proposal information or source selection (3) Identify the bidder or &fror and describe its
information does not occur; or interest in the procurement.
(4) The Government's use of technical data in a-man  (c) Resumption of pécipation in a pocurement (1)
ner consistent with the Governmentights in the data. The individual shall remain disqualified until such time as
() Nothing in this section shall be construed to autho the agency has authorized théicil to resume participa
rize— tion in the procurement in accordance with
(1) The withholding of any information pursuant to a 3.104-4(c)(2)(ii).
proper request from the Congress, any committee or sub (2) Subsequent to a period of disqualification, if an
committee thereof, a Federal agendle Comptroller agency wishes to reinstate the agendiciaf to participa
General, or an Inspector General of a Federal agercgpt tion in the procurement, the H@A designee may authorize
as otherwise authorized by law or regulatioAny such immediate reinstatement or may authorize reinstatement
release which contains contractor bid or proposal inferma following whatever additional period of disqualification the
tion or source selection information shall clearly notify the HCA determines is necessary to ensure the integrity of the
recipient that the information or portions thereof are-con procurement process. In determining that any additional
tractor bid or proposal information or source selection period of disqualification is necessattye HCAor designee
information related to the conduct of a Federal agency pro shall consider any factors that might give rise to an appear
curement, the disclosure of which is restricted by section 27ance that the agency fiofal acted without complete
of theAct; impartiality with respect to issues involved in the proeure
(2) The withholding of information from, or restrict  ment. The HCAor designee shall consult with the agency
ing its receipt bythe Comptroller General of the United ethics oficial in making a determination to reinstate afi-of
States in the course of a protest against the award or procial. Decisions to reinstate an employee should be in
posed award of a Federal agency procurement contract;  writing. It is within the discretion of the HCA, or designee,
(3) The release of information after award of a-con to determine that the agencyiofal shall not be reinstated
tract or cancellation of a procurement if such information is to participation in the procurement.
contractor bid or proposal information or source selection (3) An employee must comply with the provisions of
information which pertains to another procurement; or 18 U.S.C. 208 and 5 CFR Part 2635 regarding any resumec
(4) The disclosure, solicitation, or receipt of bid or participation in a procurement mattén employee may not
proposal information or source selection information after be reinstated to participate in a procurement matfectaf
award where such disclosure, solicitation, or receipt is pro ing the financial interest of someone with whom he or she

hibited by law (See 3.104-1(b)(5) and Subpart 24.2.) is seeking employment, unless he or she receives a waive
pursuant to 18 U.S.C. 208(b)(1) or (b)(3) or an authorization
3.104-6 Disqualification. in accordance with the requirements of 5 CFR Part 2635, as

(a) Contacts though agents Disqualification pursuant  appropriate.
to 3.104-4(c)(2) may be required even where contacts are
through an agent or other intermediary of the agerfayialf 3.104-7 Ethics advisory opinions  regarding

or an agent or other intermediary of a bidder terof. (See prohibitions on a former official’s acceptance of
18 U.S.C. 208 and 5 CFR 2635.603(c).) compensation fom a contractor.

(b) Disqualification notice In addition to submitting the (a)An official or former oficial of a Federal agency who
contact report required by 3.104-4(c)(1), an agenfigialf does not know whether he or she is or would be precluded

who must disqualify himself or herself pursuant to 3.104- by subsection 27(d) of thect (see 3.104-4(d)) from accept
4(c)(2)(ii) shall promptly submit to the head of the ing compensation from a particular contractor may request
contracting activity (HCA), or designee, a written notice of advice from the appropriate agency ethidéciafl prior to
disqualification from further participation in the procure accepting such compensation.

ment. Concurrent copies of the notice shall be submitted to  (b) The request for an advisory opinion shall be submit
the contracting dicer, the source selection authority if the ted in writing, shall be dated and signed, and shall include
contracting dicer is not the source selection authqrapd all information reasonably available to thé@él or former
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official that is relevant to the inquiryAs a minimum, the  of the contract, the prohibition begins on the date of the
request shall include— selection of the contractor
(1) Information about the procurement(s), or deci (b) If the former dficial was serving in one of the pesi
sion(s) on matters under 3.104-4(d)(1)(iii), involving the tions specified in 3.104-4(d)(1)(i) on the date of the award
particular contractorin which the individual was or is  of the contract (whether or not they were serving on the date
involved, including contract or solicitation numbers, dates of the selection of the contractor), the prohibition begins on
of solicitation or award, a description of the supplies or ser the date of the award of the contract.
vices procured or to be procured, and contract amount; (c) If the former diicial was serving in one of the pesi
(2) Information about the individual's participation in - tions specified in 3.104-4(d)(1)(ii), the prohibition begins
the procurement or decision, including the dates or timeon the last date the individual served in that position.
periods of that participation, and the nature of the individ (d) If the former diicial personally made one of the deci
ual's duties, responsibilities, or actions; and sions specified in 3.104-4(d)(1)(iii), the prohibition begins
(3) Information about the contractancluding a on the date the decision was made.
description of the products or services produced by the divi
sion or afiliate of the contractor from whom the individual 3 104-9 Contract clauses.

proposes to accept compensation. (@ The contracting dicer shall insert the clause at

(c) Within 30 days after the date a request containing 53 203-g, Cancellation, Rescission, and Recovery of Funds
complete information is received, or as soon thereafter aSor llegal or ImproperActivity, in solicitations and cen

practicable, the agency ethicicitil shall issue an opinion s with a value exceeding the simplified acquisition
as to whether the proposed conduct is proper or would vio threshold.

late subsection 27(d) of ti#ect.

(d)(1) Where complete information is not included in the
request, the agency ethicdichl may ask the requester to
provide any information reasonably available to the
requester Additional information may also be requested
from other persons, including the source selection authority
the contracting dicer, or the requester's immediate super

visor. : o . o .
L - e mation of a violation or possible violation of subsections
(2) In issting an opinion, the agency ethickcaf 27(a), (b), (c), or (d) of thact (see 3.104-4), the contract

may rely upon the accuracy of information furnished by the ing officer shall determine whether the reported violation or
requester or other agency sources, unless he or she has reqd P

son to believe that the information is fraudulent, misleading, poss@le violation has any impact on the pending award or
or otherwise incorrect. selection of the source therefor

(3) If the requester is advised in a written opinion by (1) If the contracting dicer concludes that there is no

the agency ethics fifial that the requester may accept com MPact on the procurement, the contractirficef shall for
pensation from a particular contractand accepts such ward _the mformatlor_w concerning tr_\e violation or p_035|ble
compensation in good faith reliance on that advisory-opin Violation, accompanied by appropriate documentation sup
ion, then neither the requester nor the contractor shall b?0rting that conclusion, to an individual designated in
found to have knowingly violated subsection 27(d) of the @ccordance with agency procedur#fith the concurrence
Act. If the requester or the contractor has actual knowledge®f that individual, the contractingfafer shall, without fur

or reason to believe that the opinion is based upon fraudu ther approval, proceed with the procurement.

(b) The contracting dicer shall insert the clause at
52.203-10, Price or Fe&djustment for Illegal or Improper
Activity, in solicitations and contracts with a value exeeed
ing the simplified acquisition threshold.

3.104-10 Violations or possible violations.
(a) If the contracting €iter receives or obtains infor

lent, misleading, or otherwise incorrect information, their (2) If the individual reviewing the contractingfief
reliance upon the opinion will not be deemed to be in goodcer's conclusion does not agree with that conclusion, the
faith. individual shall advise the contractingfioér to withhold

award and shall promptly forward the information and-doc

3.104-8 Calculating the period of compensation  Umentation to the HCAr designee.

prohibition. (3) If the contracting dicer concludes that the vicla

The one-year prohibition on accepting compensation tion or possible violation impacts the procurement, the
(see 3.104-4(d)(1)) begins to run as provided in this subseccontracting dicer shall promptly forward the information
tion. to the HCAor designee.

(a) If the former dicial was serving in one of the pesi (b) The HCA or designee receiving any information
tions specified in 3.104-4(d)(1)() on the date of the describing an actual or possible violation of subsections
selection of the contractdout not on the date of the award 27(a), (b), (c), or (d) of th&ct, shall review all information
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3.203

available and take appropriate action in accordance with

agency procedures, such as—

(1) Advising the contracting &iter to continue with
the procurement;

(2) Causing an investigation to be conducted;

(e) The HCAor designee shall recommend or direct an
administrative or contractual remedy commensurate with
the severity and &dct of the violation.

(f) If the HCA or designee receiving information eon
cerning a violation or possible violation determines that

(3) Referring the information disclosed to appropriate award is justified by @ent and compelling circumstances,

criminal investigative agencies;
(4) Concluding that a violation occurred; or

or is otherwise in the interests of the Government, the HCA
may authorize the contractingfiokr to award the contract

(5) Recommending an agency head determinationor execute the contract modification after notification to the

that the contractpor someone acting for the contractuas
engaged in conduct constituting anfeose punishable
under subsection 27(e) of thet, for the purpose of void
ing or rescinding the contract.

(c) Before concluding that a biddefferor, contractor
or person has violated thect, the HCAor designee may

head of the agency in accordance with agency procedures.

(g) The HCAmay delegate his or her authority under
this subsection to an individual at least ongaoizational
level above the contractingfizier and of General Gi€er,
Flag, Senior Executive Service, or equivalent rank.

request information from appropriate parties regarding the3.104-1. Criminal and civil penalties, and further

violation or possible violation when considered in the best

interests of the Government.

(d) If the HCAor designee concludes that the prohibi
tions of section 27 of thaAct have been violated, then the
HCA or designee may direct the contractinfjoefr to—

(1) If a contract has not been awarded—
(i) Cancel the procurement;
(ii) Disqualify an oferor; or
(iii) Take any other appropriate actions in the inter
ests of the Government.
(2) If a contract has been awarded—
(i) Effect appropriate contractual remedies, inelud

administrative remedies.

Criminal and civil penalties, and administrative reme
dies, may apply to conduct which violates thet (see
3.104-4). See 33.102(f) for special rules regarding bid
protests. See 3.104-10 for administrative remedies relating
to contracts.

(a) An official who knowingly fails to comply with the
requirements of 3.104-4 shall be subject to the penalties anc
administrative action set forth in subsection 27(e) of the
Act.

(b) A bidder or oferor who engages in employment-dis
cussion with an dicial subject to the restrictions of

ing profit recapture as provided for in the clause at 3.104-4, knowing that the fidial has not complied with

52.203-10, Price or Fe&djustment for lllegal or Improper

3.104-4(c)(1), shall be subject to the criminal, civil or

Activity, or, if the contract has been rescinded under-para administrative penalties set forth in subsection 27(e) of the
graph (d)(2)(ii) of this subsection, recovery of the amount Act.

expended under the contract;
(i) Void or rescind the contract with respect to
which—

(c) An official who refuses to terminate employment-dis
cussions (see 3.104-6) may be subject to agency
administrative actions under 5 CFR 2635.604(d) if tlie of

(A) The contractor or someone acting for the cial's disqualification from participation in a particular

contractor has been convicted for afen§e where the cen

procurement interferes substantially with the individual’

duct constitutes a violation of subsections 27(a) or (b) of theability to perform assigned duties.

Act for the purpose of either—

(1) Exchanging the information covered by
such subsections for anything of value; or

(2) Obtaining or giving anyone a competitive

Subpart 3.2—Contractor Gratuities to
Government Personnel

advantage in the award of a Federal agency procuremen8.201 Applicability .

contract; or
(B) The head of the agencgr designee, has

This subpart applies to all executive agencies, except that
coverage concerning exemplary damages applies only to the

determined, based upon a preponderance of the evidencd)epartment of Defense (10 U.S.C. 2207).
that the contractor or someone acting for the contractor has

engaged in conduct constituting anfeose punishable
under subsection 27(e)(1) of tAet; or

3.202 Contract clause.
The contracting dicer shall insert the clause at 52.203-

(iii) Take any other appropriate actions in the best 3, Gratuities, in solicitations and contracts with a value

interests of the Government.

exceeding the simplified acquisition threshold, except those

(3) Refer the matter to the agency suspension andfor personal services and those between military depart

debarment dicial.

ments or defense agencies and foreign governments that di
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not obligate any funds appropriated to the Department ofshould therefore be sensitive to indications of unlawful

Defense. behavior by derors and contractorsAgency personnel
shall report, in accordance with agency regulations, evi

3.203 Reporting suspected violations of the Gratuities dence of suspected antitrust violations in acquisitions for

clause. possible referral to—

Agency personnel shall report suspected violations of the (1) TheAttorney General under 3.303; and
Gratuities clause to the contractindicer or other desig (2) The agency dice responsible for contractor
nated dficial in accordance with agency procedur&ke debarment and suspension under Subpart 9.4.

agency reporting procedures shall be published as an-imple
mentation of this section 3.203 and shall clearly specify— 3.302 Definitions.

(a) What to report and how to report it; and “Identical bids” means bids for the same line item that
(b) The channels through which reports must pass, gre determined to be identical as to unit price or total line
including the function and authority of eacliicél desig item amount, with or without the application of evaluation
nated to review them. factors €.g, discount or transportation cost).
o “Line item” means an item of supply or service, speci
3.204 Treatment of violations. fied in an invitation for bids, for which the bidder must bid

(a) Before taking any action against a contractioe a separate price.
agency head or a designee shall determine, after notice and

hearing under agency procedures, whether the conirastor 5 33 Reporting suspected antitrust violations.

agent, or another representative, under a contract containing (a)Agencies are required by 41 U.S.C. 253(B)(e) and 10

the Gratwufvras clause— , , U.S.C. 2305(b)(5) to report to thétorney General any bids
(1) Ofiered or gave a gratuite(g, an entertainment or proposals that evidence a violation of the antitrust laws.

or gift) to an oficer, official, or employee of the These reports are in addition to those required by Subpart
Government; and

. . 9.4
(2) Intended by the gratuity to obtain a contract or

. (b) The antitrust laws are intended to ensure that markets
favorable treatment under a contract (intent generally must itivelvA | und
be inferred) operate competitivelyAny agreement or mutual under

(b) Agency procedures shall fafd the contractor an standing among competing firms that restrains the natural

opportunity to appear with counsel, submit documentary operation of market forces is suspect. Paragraph (c) below

! . identifies behavior patterns that are often associated with
evidence, present witnesses, and confront any person the

agency presentdhe procedures should be as informal as antitrust violations Activities meeting the descriptions in
practicable, consistent with principles of fundamental fair paragraph (c) are not necessarily improbat they are suf

ness ficiently questionable to warrant notifying the appropriate

(c) When the agency head or designee determines that guthorities, n accordance with agency _procedur_es. _
violation has occurred, the Government may— (c) Practices or events that may evidence violations of

(1) Terminate the contractarright to proceed:; the antitrust laws include— o
(2) Initiate debarment or suspension measures as set (1) The existence of an “industry price list” or “price

forth in Subpart 9.4; and agreement” to which contractors refer in formulating their
(3) Assess exemplary damages, if the contract usesOffers; N o
money appropriated to the Department of Defense. ~ (2) A sudden change from competitive bidding to
identical bidding;
Subpart 3.3—Repotts of Suspectedntitrust (3) Simultaneous price increases or follow-the-leader
Violations pricing;

(4) Rotation of bids or proposals, so that each-com

3.301 General. petitor takes a turn in sequence as low bidderso that

(a) Practices that eliminate competition or restrain trade certain competitors bid low only on some sizes of contracts
usually lead to excessive prices and may warrant criminal,and high on other sizes;
civil, or administrative action against the participants. (5) Division of the market, so that certain competitors
Examples of anticompetitive practices are collusive- bid bid low only for contracts let by certain agencies, or for con
ding, follow-the-leader pricing, rotated low bids, collusive tracts in certain geographical areas, or on certain products,
price estimating systems, and sharing of the business. and bid high on all other jobs;

(b) Contracting personnel are an important potential (6) Establishment by competitors of a collusive price
source of investigative leads for antitrust enforcement andestimating system;
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PART 3—IMPROPER BUSINESS PRACTICES ANDPERSONAL CONFLICTS OF INTEREST 3.405
(7) The filing of a joint bid by two or more competi  tractors supervision and control as to time, place, and-man

tors when at least one of the competitors haficsrit ner of performance, who neither exerts nor proposes to exer
technical capability and productive capacity for contract improper influence to solicit or obtain Government con
performance; tracts nor holds out as being able to obtain any Government

(8) Any incidents suggesting direct collusion among contract or contracts through improper influence.
competitors, such as the appearance of identical calculation “Contingent fee,” as used in this subpart, means any
or spelling errors in two or more competitivéené or the commission, percentage, brokerage, or other fee that4is con
submission by one firm of f&frs for other firms; and tingent upon the success that a person or concern has il

(9) Assertions by the employees, former employees, securing a Government contract.
or competitors of dérors, that an agreement to restrain  ‘Improper influence,” as used in this subpart, means any
trade exists. influence that induces or tends to induce a Government

(d) Identical bids shall be reported under this section if €mployee or dicer to give consideration or to act regarding
the agency has some reason to believe that the bids resulted Government contract on any basis other than the merits o
from collusion. the matter

(e) For ofers from foreign contractors for contracts to )
be performed outside the United States, contractifigees ~ 3-402 Statutory requirements. _
may refer suspected collusivée to the authorities of the Contractors’arrangements to pay contingent fees for

foreigh government concerned for appropriate action. soliciting or obtaining Government contracts have long
(f) Agency reports shall be addressed to the— been considered contrary to public policy because such
arrangements may lead to attempted or actual exercise o

Attorney General improper influence. In 10 U.S.C. 2306(b) and 41 U.S.C.
U.S. Department of Justice 254(a), Congress fadmed this public policy but permitted
Washington, DC 20530 _ certain exceptionghese statutes—
gtif/ei;t;?]n'ASS'StamAttomey Generalntitrust () Require in every negotiated contract a warranty by
and shall include— the contract_or against contlr)gent fees; .
: - _ (b) Permit, as an exception to the warramgntingent
(1)A brief statement dgs_cnl:.nng the suspected practiceseq arrangements between contractors and bona fide
and the reason for the suspicion; and employees or bona fide agencies; and
o _(2) The hame, address, and telephone number of an (c) Provide that, for breach or violation of the warranty
individual in the agency who can be contacted for further by the contractorthe Government may annul the contract

information._ ) ) i _ without liability or deduct from the contract price or eon
(9) Questions concerning this reporting requirement may gjgeration, or otherwise recoyehe full amount of the
be communicated by telephone directly to th&c®fof the contingent fee.

AssistantAttorney GeneralAntitrust Division.

3.403 Applicability .
This subpart applies to all contracts. Statutory reguire
ments for negotiated contracts are, as a matter of policy

3.400 Scope of subpar. o extended to sealed bid contracts.
This subpart prescribes policies and procedures that

restrict contingent fee arrangements for soliciting or obtain 3 404 Contract clause.
ing Government contracts to those permitted by 10 U.S.C.  The contracting dicer shall insert the clause at 52.203-

Subpart 3.4—Contingent Fees

2306(b) and 41 U.S.C. 254(a). 5, CovenantAgainst Contingent Fees, in all solicitations
o and contracts exceeding the simplified acquisition thresh
3.401 Definitions. old, other than those for commercial items (see Parts 2 anc

“Bona fide agency as used in this subpart, means an 12).
established commercial or selling agenmyintained by a
contractor for the purpose of securing business, that neithed.405 Misr epresentations owiolations of the
exerts nor proposes to exert improper influence to solicit or ~ CovenantAgainst Contingent Fees.
obtain Government contracts nor holds itself out as being (a) Government personnel who suspect or have evidence
able to obtain any Government contract or contracts throughof attempted or actual exercise of improper influence; mis
improper influence. representation of a contingent fee arrangement, or other
“Bona fide employee,” as used in this subpart, means aviolation of the Covenanfigainst Contingent Fees shall
person, employed by a contractor and subject to the conreport the matter promptly to the contractindiosfr or
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appropriate higher authority in accordance with agency pro (2) Priced options for additional quantities that,

cedures. together with the firm contract quantiggqual the program
(b) When there is specific evidence or other reasonablerequirements (see Subpart 17.2).

basis to suspect one or more of the violations in paragraph (c) Other safeguards are available to the contractiing of

(a) above, the chief of the contractin§ad shall reviewthe  cer to preclude recovery of buying-in losses.g(

facts and, if appropriate, take or direct one or more of theamortization of nonrecurring costs (see 15.804-6(f)) and

following, or othey actions: treatment of unreasonable price quotations (see 15.803(d)).
(2) If before award, reject the bid or proposal.

(2) If after award, enforce the Governmentight to 3.502 Subcontractor kickbacks.
annul the contract or to recover the fee.
(3) Initiate suspension or debarment action under 3.502-1 Definitions.
Subpart 9.4. “Kickback,” as used in this section, means any mpney
(4) Refer suspected fraudulent or criminal matters to fee, commission, credit, gift, gratuitshing of value, or
t_he Department of Justice, as prescribed in agency Fegu'%ompensation of any kind which is provided, directly or
tions. indirectly, to any prime contractprprime contractor
employee, subcontractar subcontractor employee for the

3.406 Records. purpose of improperly obtaining or rewarding favorable

For enforcement purposes, agencies shall preserve anyeamment in connection with a prime contract or in connec
specific_evidence of one or more of the violations in s with a subcontract relating to a prime contract.

3.405(a), tog.ether with all other p'ert?nent data, incluqmg a  “person,” as used in this section, means a corporation,
recgrd of acrtllons takena Con_tlrgc.nnglmﬂs_shall nc;}t retire partnership, business association of any kind, trust, joint-
or destroy these records until it is certain that they are nog; companyor individual.

longer needed for enforcement purposes. If the original “Prime contract,” as used in this section, means a con

:gfg:]de dIS'nTr?énéilr?t(re:ctl?'I: central file, a copy must be tract or contractual action entered into by the United States
! ! ne. for the purpose of obtaining supplies, materials, equipment,
or services of any kind.

Subpart 3.5—Other Impr oper Business “Prime Contractqgf’ as used in this section, means & per

Practices son who has entered into a prime contract with the United
S States.
3.501 Buying-in. . . . .
ying “Prime Contractor employee,” as used in this section,
3501-1 Definition means any diter, partner employee, or agent of a prime
' ' contractor

“Buying-in” means submitting an fer below antici ) ” I .
pated costs, expecting to— Subcontract,” as used in this section, means a contract

(a) Increase the contract amount after awaedy,( or contractual action entered into by _a_pnme cqntractor qr
through unnecessary or excessively priced change Orders)gubcontractor for the purpose of obtaining supplies, materi-

or als, equipment, or services of any kind under a prime
(b) Receive follow-on contracts at artificially high prices cor:tract. o _
to recover losses incurred on the buy-in contract. Subcontractaf as used in this section—
(a) Means any person, other than the prime contractor
3.501-2 General. who offers to furnish or furnishes any supplies, materials,

(a) Buying-in may decrease competition or result in poor €quipment, or services of any kind under a prime contract or
contract performance.The contracting dicer must take a subcontract entered into in connection with such prime
appropriate action to ensure buying-in losses are not+ecovcontract; and

ered by the contractor through the pricing of— (b) Includes any person whofefs to furnish or fur
(1) Change orders; or nishes general supplies to the prime contractor or a higher
(2) Follow-on contracts subject to cost analysis. tier subcontractor

(b) The Government should minimize the opportunity for
buying-in by seeking a price commitment covering as much 3.502-2 Subcontractor kickbacks.
of the entire program concerned as is practical by using—  The Anti-Kickback Act of 1986 (41 U.S.C. 51-58) was
(1) Multiyear contracting, with a requirement in the passed to deter subcontractors from making payments and
solicitation that a price be submitted only for the total-mul contractors from accepting payments for the purpose of
tiyear quantity; or improperly obtaining or rewarding favorable treatment in
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connection with a prime contract or a subcontract relating toinspector general of the contracting agemeya represerta

a prime contractThe Act— tive of such contracting agency designated by the head of
(&) Prohibits any person from— the agency if the agency does not have an inspector genera
(1) Providing, attempting to provide, orfefing to shall have access to and may inspect the facilities and audi
provide any kickback; the books and records, including any electronic data or
(2) Soliciting, accepting, or attempting to accept any records, of any prime contractor or subcontractor under a

kickback; or prime contract awarded by such agency
(3) Including, directly or indirectlythe amount of (i) Requires each contracting agency to include in each

any kickback in the contract price cgad by a subcontrac  prime contract exceeding $100,000 for other than commer
tor to a prime contractor or a higher tier subcontractor or incial items (see Part 12), a requirement that the prime
the contract price chged by a prime contractor to the contractor shall—
United States. (1) Have in place and follow reasonable procedures
(b) Imposes criminal penalties on any person who know designed to prevent and detect violations ofAbtin its
ingly and willfully engages in the prohibited conduct own operations and direct business relationskdgs com
addressed in paragraph (a) of this subsection. pany ethics rules prohibiting kickbacks by employees,
(c) Provides for the recovery of civil penalties by the agents, or subcontractors; education programs for new
United States from any person who knowingly engages inemployees and subcontractors, explaining policies about
such prohibited conduct and from any person whosekickbacks, related company procedures and the eonse
employee, subcontractoor subcontractor employee pro quences of detection; procurement procedures to minimize
vides, accepts, or chggs a kickback. the opportunity for kickbacks; audit procedures designed to
(d) Provides that— detect kickbacks; periodic surveys of subcontractors to

(1) The contracting diicer may ofset the amount of  elicit information about kickbacks; procedures to report
a kickback against monies owed by the United States to thekickbacks to law enforcementfimfials; annual declarations
prime contractor under the prime contract to which such by employees of gifts or gratuities received from subcon
kickback relates; tractors; annual employee declarations that they have

(2) The contracting dicer may direct a prime cen  violated no company ethics rules; personnel practices that
tractor to withhold from any sums owed to a subcontractor document unethical or illegal behavior and make such-infor
under a subcontract of the prime contract the amount of anymation available to prospective employers); and
kickback which was or may befsét against the prime con (2) Cooperate fully with any Federal agency investi
tractor under subparagraph (d)(1) of this subsection; and gating a possible violation of thect.

(3) An offset under subparagraph (d)(1) or a direction  (j) Notwithstanding paragraph (i) of this subsection, a
under subparagraph (d)(2) of this subsection is a claim byprime contractor shall cooperate fully with any Federal gov
the Government for the purposes of the Contract Disputesernment agency investigating a violation of Section 3 of the
Act of 1978. Anti-Kickback Act of 1986 (41 U.S.C. 51-58).

(e) Authorizes contracting @i€ers to order that sums
withheld under subparagraph (d)(2) of this subsection be3.502-3 Contract clause.

paid to the contracting agenayr if the sum has already The contracting dicer shall insert the clause at 52.203-
been ofset against the prime contracttinat it be retained 7, Anti-Kickback Procedures, in solicitations and contracts
by the prime contractor exceeding the simplified acquisition threshold, other than

() Requires the prime contractor to notify the contract those for commercial items (see Part 12).
ing officer when the withholding under subparagraph
(d)(2)of this subsection has been accomplished unless th&.503 Unreasonable estrictions on subcontractor
amount withheld has been paid to the Government. sales.
(g) Requires a prime contractor or subcontractor to
report in writing to the inspector general of the contracting 3.503-1 Policy.
agency the head of the contracting agency if the agency 10 U.S.C. 2402 and 41 U.S.C. 253g require that subcon
does not have an inspector general, or the Department ofractors not be unreasonably precluded from making direct
Justice any possible violation of thet when the prime  sales to the Government of any supplies or services made o
contractor or subcontractor has reasonable grounds tdurnished under a contract. Howeyvthis does not preclude
believe such violation may have occurred. contractors from asserting rights that are otherwise autho
(h) Provides that, for the purpose of ascertaining rized by law or regulation.
whether there has been a violation ofAlse with respect to
any prime contract, the Genefstcounting Ofice and the 3.503-2 Contract clause.
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The contracting dicer shall insert the clause at 52.203-

6, Restrictions on Subcontractor Sales to the Government,

in solicitations and contracts exceeding the simplified
acquisition threshold. For the acquisition of commercial
items, the contracting fi€er shall use the clause with its
Alternate |.

Subpart 3.6—Contracts with Government
Employees or Organizations Owned or
Controlled by Them

3.601 Policy.

(a) Except as specified in 3.602, a contractinficerf
shall not knowingly award a contract to a Government
employee or to a business concern or othgamization

owned or substantially owned or controlled by one or more

Government employeedhis policy is intended to avoid
any conflict of interest that might arise between the employ

ees’interests and their Government duties, and to avoid the
appearance of favoritism or preferential treatment by the

Government toward its employees.

(b) For purposes of this subpart, special Government

employees (as defined in 18 U.S.C. 202) performing ser
vices as experts, advisors, or consultants, or as members

advisory committees, are not considered Government

employees unless—

(1) The contract arises directly out of the individual's
activity as a special Government employee;

(2) In the individual's capacity as a special
Government employee, the individual is in a position to
influence the award of the contract; or

(3) Another conflict of interest is determined to exist.

3.602 Exceptions.

[0)

Subpart 3.7—\Woiding and Rescinding
Contracts

3.700 Scope of subpat.

(a) This subpart prescribes Governmentwide policies and
procedures for exercising discretionary authority to declare
void and rescind contracts in relation to which—

(1) There has been a final conviction for brihergn
flict of interest, disclosure or receipt of contractor bid or
proposal information or source selection information in
exchange for a thing of value or to give anyone a competi
tive advantage in the award of a Federal agency
procurement contract, or similar misconduct; or

(2) There has been an agency head determination that
contractor bid or proposal information or source selection
information has been disclosed or received in exchange for
a thing of value, or for the purpose of obtaining or giving
anyone a competitive advantage in the award of a Federal
agency procurement contract.

(b) This subpart does not prescribe policies or procedures
for, or govern the exercise of, any other remedy available to
the Government with respect to such contracts, including
l%ut not limited to, the common law right of avoidance,
rescission, or cancellation.

3.701 Purpose.

This subpart provides—

(a) An administrative remedy with respect to contracts in
relation to which there has been—

(2) A final conviction for briberyconflict of interest,
disclosure or receipt of contractor bid or proposal inferma
tion or source selection information in exchange for a thing
of value or to give anyone a competitive advantage in the

The agency head, or a designee not below the level of theéward of a Federal agency procurement contract, or similar

head of the contracting activjtsnay authorize an exception
to the policy in 3.601 only if there is a most compelling rea
son to do so, such as when the Governraergeds cannot
reasonably be otherwise met.

3.603 Responsibilities of the contracting dicer.
(a) Before awarding a contract, the contractinficef
shall obtain an authorization under 3.602 if—
(1) The contracting dicer knows, or has reason to

misconduct; or
(2) An agency head determination that contractor bid

or proposal information or source selection information has
been disclosed or received in exchange for a thing of value,
or for the purpose of obtaining or giving anyone a competi
tive advantage in the award of a Federal agency
procurement contract; and

(b) A means to deter similar misconduct in the future by
those who are involved in the award, performance, and

believe, that a prospective contractor is one to which awardadministration of Government contracts.

is otherwise prohibited under 3.601; and

(2) There is a most compelling reason to make an 3.702 Definition.

award to that prospective contractor
(b) The contracting dicer shall comply with the require

“Final conviction” means a conviction, whether entered
on a verdict or plea, including a plea of nolo contendere, for

ments and guidance in Subpart 9.5 before awarding awhich a sentence has been imposed.

contract to an granization owned or substantially owned or
controlled by Government employees.
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(a) Section 1(e) of Public Law 87-849, 18 U.S.C. 218 (2) Recommending the initiation of suspension or
(“the Act”), empowers the President or the heads of execu debarment proceedings in accordance with Subpart 9.4.
tive agencies acting under regulations prescribed by the
President, to declare void and rescind contracts and otheB.705 Procedures.
transactions enumerated in thet, in relation to which (a) Repoting. The facts concerning any final conviction
there has been a final conviction for bribecpnflict of for any violation of 18 U.S.C. 201-224 involving or relating
interest, or any other violation of Chaptdr df Title 18 of to agency contracts shall be reported promptly to the agency
the United States Code (18 U.S.C. 201-224). Executivehead or designee for thatfiofal's considerationThe
Order 12448, November 4, 1983, delegates the President' agency head or designee shall promptly notify the Civil
authority under théct to the heads of the executive agen Division, Department of Justice, that the action is being
cies and military departments. considered under this subpart.

(b) Subsection 27(e)(3) of the @k of Federal (b) Decision Following an assessment of the facts, the
Procurement Policgict (41 U.S.C. 423) (the OFFRt), as  agency head or designee may declare void and rescind con
amended, requires a Federal agemppn receiving infer  racts with respect to which a final conviction has been
mation that a contractor or a person has engaged in condu@ntered, and recover the amounts expended and the propert

consituting a violation of subsection 27(a) or (b) of the yransferred by the agency under the terms of the contracts
OFPPAct, to consider recission of a contract with respect to ;,olved.

which—

(1) The contractor or someone acting for the contrac
tor has been convicted for anfeise punishable under
subsection 27(e)(1) of the OFREX; or . ciples of fundamental fairnes8s a minimum, however

(2) The head of the agencgr designee, has deter agencies shall provide the following:
mined, based upon a preponderance of the evidence, that the (1) A notice of proposed action to declare void and

contractor or someone acting for the contractor has engage?escind the contract shall be made in writing and sent by
in conduct constituting such arferise. certified malil, return receipt requested.

(2) A thirty calendar day period after receipt of the
notice, for the contractor to submit pertinent information
before any final decision is made.

(3) Upon request made within the period for submis
sion of pertinent information, an opportunity shall be
’glfforded for a hearing at which witnesses may be presented

(c) Decision-making mcess Agency procedures gev
erning the voiding and rescinding decision-making process
shall be as informal as practicable, consistent with the prin

3.704 Policy.

(a) In cases in which there is a final conviction for any
violation of 18 U.S.C. 201-224 involving or relating to eon
tracts awarded by an agentlye agency head or designee,
shall consider the facts available and, if appropriate, may
declare void and rescind contracts, and recover the amount .
expended and property transferred by the agency in-accorand any W|tr.1ess' the agency presents may be co.nf'ronted
dance with the policies and procedures of this subpart. Howev.er'no inquiry shall be made regarding the validity of

(b) Since a final conviction under 18 U.S.C. 201-224 & conviction. _ _
relating to a contract also may justify the conclusion that the (4) If thel agency head or quIgnee deudgs to declare
party involved is not presently responsible, the agencyyo'd and r.escmd the_ contrgcts involved, thdicafl shall
should consider initiating debarment proceedings in accor 1SSU€ a written decision which—

dance with Subpart 9.4, Debarment, Suspension, and (i) States that determination; .

Ineligibility, if debarment has not been initiated, or is not in (i) Reflects consideration of the fair value of any

effect at the time the final conviction is entered. tangible benefits received and retained by the agency; and
(c) If there is a final conviction for anfefise punishable (iii) States the amount due and the property to be

under subsection 27(e) of the OFRR, or if the head of the ~ returned to the agency
agency or designee, has determined, based upon a prepon (d) Notice of poposed action The notice of proposed
derance of the evidence, that the contractor or someondction, as a minimum shall—
acting for the contractor has engaged in conduct constitut (1) Advise that consideration is being given to declar
ing such an dénse, then the head of the contracting activity ing void and rescinding contracts awarded by the agency
shall considerin addition to any other penalty prescribed by and recovering the amounts expended and property- trans
law or regulation— ferred therefgrunder the provisions of 18 U.S.C. 218;

(1) Declaring void and rescinding contracts, as appro (2) Specifically identify the contractsfatted by the
priate, and recovering the amounts expended under theaction;
contracts by using the procedures at 3.705 (see 3.104-10); (3) Specifically identify the dénse or final convic
and tion on which the action is based;
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(4) State the amounts expended and property-trans (d) The entering into of any cooperative agreement.
ferred under each of the contracts involved, and the money (e) The extension, continuation, renewal, amendment, or
and the property demanded to be returned; modification of any Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooper

(5) Identify any tangible benefits received and ative agreement.
retained by the agency under the contract, and the value of *“Indian tribe” and “tribal oganization,” as used in this
those benefits, as calculated by the agency; section, have the meaning provided in section 4 of the

(6) Advise that pertinent information may be submit Indian Self-Determination and EducatidwssistanceAct
ted within 30 calendar days after receipt of the notice, and(25 U.S.C. 450B) and includdaskan Natives.
that, if requested within that time, a hearing shall be held at  “Influencing or attempting to influence,” as used in this
which witnesses may be presented and any witness theection, means making, with the intent to influence, any
agency presents may be confronted; and communication to or appearance before aficaf or

(7) Advise that action shall be taken only after the employee of any agencg Member of Congress, arfioér
agency head or designee issues a final written decision oror employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of
the proposed action. Congress in connection with any covered Federal action.

(e) Final agency decisianThe final agency decision “Local government,” as used in this section, means a unit
shall be based on the information available to the agencyof government in a State and, if chartered, established, or
head or designee, including any pertinent information sub otherwise recognized by a State for the performance of a
mitted or if a hearing was held, presented at the hearing. If governmental dutyincluding a local public authorita spe
the agency decision declares void and rescinds the contractial district, an intrastate district, a council of governments,
the final decision shall specify the amounts due and-prop a sponsor group representativganization, and any other
erty to be returned to the ageneyd reflect consideration instrumentality of a local government.
of the fair value of any tangible benefits received and “Officer or employee of an agentws used in this sec
retained by the agenciMotice of the decision shall be sent tion, includes the following individuals who are employed
promptly by certified mail, return receipt requested. by an agency:

Rescission of contracts under the authority ofAbeand (&) An individual who is appointed to a position in the
demand for recovery of the amounts expended and propertyGovernment under title 5, United States Code, including a
transferred therefprs not a claim within the meaning of the position under a temporary appointment.

Contract Disputeéct of 1978 (CDA), 41 U.S.C. 801-813, (b) A member of the uniformed services, as defined in

or Part 32Therefore, the procedures required by the CDA subsection 101(3), title 37, United States Code.

and the AR for the issuance of a final contractindicdr (c) A special Government employee, as defined in sec

decision are not applicable to final agency decisions undertion 202, title 18, United States Code.

this subpart, and shall not be followed. (d) An individual who is a member of a Federal advisory
committee, as defined by the Fedekdvisory Committee

Subpart 3.8—Limitation on the Payment of Act, title 5, United States Code, appendix 2.
Funds to Influence FederalTransactions “Person,” as used in this section, means an individual,

corporation, companyassociation, authoritfirm, partner

3.800 Scope of subpat. ship, society State, and local government, regardless of

This subpart prescribes policies and procedures imple whether such entity is operated for profit or not for profit.
menting section 319 of the Department of Interior and This term excludes an Indian tribe, tribaganization, or
Related Agencies AppropriationsAct, Pub. L. 101-121, any other Indian ganization with respect to expenditures
which added a new section 1352 to title 31, United Statesspecifically permitted by other Federal law
Code, entitled “Limitation on use of appropriated funds to  “Reasonable compensation,” as used in this section,
influence certain Federal contracting and financial transac means, with respect to a regularly employeticef or

tions” (theAct). employee of any person, compensation that is consistent
with the normal compensation for sucHiedr or employee
3.801 Definitions. for work that is not furnished to, not funded by not fur
“Agency,” as used in this section, means an executive nished in cooperation with the Federal Government.
agency as defined in 2.101. “Reasonable payment,” as used in this section, means,
“Covered Federal action,” as used in this section, meanswith respect to professional and other technical services, a
any of the following Federal actions: payment in an amount that is consistent with the amount
(&) The awarding of any Federal contract. normally paid for such services in the private sector
(b) The making of any Federal grant. “Recipient,” as used in this section, includes the contrac
(c) The making of any Federal loan. tor and all subcontractorsThis term excludes an Indian
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tribe, tribal oganization, or any other Indiangamnization (c) The prohibitions of théct do not apply under the
with respect to expenditures specifically permitted by other following conditions:
Federal law (1) Agency and legislative liaison by own employees

“Regularly employed,” as used in this section, means, (i) The prohibition on the use of appropriated funds, in
with respect to an &i€er or employee of a person request paragraph (a) of this section, does not apply in the case of ¢
ing or receiving a Federal contract, aficgfr or employee  payment of reasonable compensation made tofareobr
who is employed by such person for at least 130 working employee of a person requesting or receiving a covered
days within 1 year immediately preceding the date of the Federal action if the payment is for agency and legislative
submission that initiates agency consideration of such per |iaison activities not directly related to a covered Federal
son for receipt of such contracfn officer or employee  gction.
who is employed by such person for less than 130 working (i) For purposes of subdivision (c)(1)(i) of this
days within 1 year immediately preceding the date of the section, providing any information specifically requested by
submission that initiates agency consideration of such per an agency or Congress is permitted at any time.
son shall be considered to be regularly employed as soon as (i) The following agency and legislative liaison
he or she is employed by such person for 130 working days atjvities are permitted at any time where they are not

“State,” as used in this section, means a State of therg|ated to a specific solicitation for any covered Federal
United States, the District of Columbia, the Commonwealth 5tion:

of Puerto Rico, a ter_ritory or po_ssession of the United_ (A) Discussing with an agency the qualities and
States, an agency or instrumentality of a State, and multi-g 54 cteristics (including individual demonstrations) of the
State, regional, or interstate entity having governmental yo oo products or services, conditions or terms of sale,
duties and powers. and service capabilities.

(B) Technical discussions and other activities
regarding the application or adaptation of the person's prod
ucts or services for an agency's use.

(iv) The following agency and legislative liaison
activities are permitted where they are prior to formal solic
itation of any covered Federal action:

(A) Providing any information not specifically
requested but necessary for an agency to make an informei
decision about initiation of a covered Federal action.

3.802 Prohibitions.

(a) Section 1352 of title 31, United States Code, among
other things, prohibits a recipient of a Federal contract,
grant, loan, or cooperative agreement from using appropri
ated funds to pay any person for influencing or attempting
to influence an dicer or employee of any agencga
Member of Congress, anfiwer or employee of Congress,
or an employee of a Member of Congress in connection
with any of the following covered Federal actions: the ) . : .
awarding of any Federal contract; the making of any (B) Techl_'nf:al discussions regardmg thg prepa
Federal grant; the making of any Federal loan; the enteringrat'on, o]‘ an unsolicited proposal prior to itsficil
into of any cooperative agreement; tire modification of ~ Submission.

any Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement. (C) Capability presentations by persons seek
(b) TheAct also requires éérors to furnish a declara N9 awards from an agency pursuant to the provisions of the

tion consisting of both a certification and a disclosure. SMall Busines#ct, as amended by Pub. L. 95-507, and

These requirements are contained in the provision atSubsequentamendments. _
52.203-1, Certification and Disclosure Regarding (v) Only those activities expressly authorized by
Payments to Influence Certain Feddrainsactions, and the ~ Subparagraph (c)(1) of this section are permitted under this
clause at 52.203-12, Limitation on Payments to Influence S€ction.
Certain Federalransactions. (2) Professional and technical seéces (I) The pre
(1) By signing its dr, an oferor certifies that no  hibition on the use of appropriated funds, in paragraph (a)
appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid in viola ©f this section, does not apply in the case of—
tion of the prohibitions in 31 U.S.C. 1352. (A) Payment of reasonable compensation made
(2) The disclosure shall identify if any funds other to an oficer or employee of a person requesting or receiv
than Federal appropriated funds (including profit or fee ing a covered Federal action or an extension, continuation,
received under a covered Federal action) have been paid, dienewal, amendment, or modification of a covered Federal
will be paid, to any person for influencing or attempting to action, if payment is for professional or technical services
influence an dfcer or employee of any agen@ Member rendered directly in the preparation, submission, or negoti
of Congress, an fifer or employee of Congress, or an ation of any bid, proposal, or application for that Federal
employee of a Member of Congress in connection with aaction or for meeting requirements imposed by or pursuant
Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement.  to law as a condition for receiving that Federal action;
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(B) Any reasonable payment to a person, other 3.803 Certification and disclosure.
than an dicer or employee of a person requesting or receiv (&) Any contractor who requests or receives a Federal
ing a covered Federal action, if the payment is for contract exceeding $100,000 shall submit the certification
professional or technical services rendered directly in theand disclosures required by the provision at 52.203-1
preparation, submission, or negotiation of any bid, proposal,Certification and Disclosure Regarding Payments to
or application for that Federal action, or for meeting Influence Certain Federalransactions, with its &dr.
requirements imposed by or pursuant to law as a conditionDisclosures under this section shall be submitted to the con
for receiving that Federal action. Persons other thfin of tracting oficer using OMB standard form LLL, Disclosure
cers or employees of a person requesting or receiving &f LobbyingActivities.

covered Federal action include consultants and trade associ (b) The contractor shall file a disclosure form at the end
ations. of each calendar quarter in which there occurs any event

(i) For purposes of subdivision (c)(2)(i) of this that materially d&cts the accuracy of the information eon
section, “professional and technical services” shall be lim tained in any disclosure form previously filed by such
ited to advice and analysis directly applying any Person under paragraph (a) of this sectidm event that
professional or technical discipline. For example, drafting Materially afects the accuracy of the information reported
of a legal document accompanying a bid or proposal by alncludes— o .
lawyer is allowable. Similarlytechnical advice provided (1) A cumulative increase of $25,000 or more in the
by an engineer on the performance or operational capability2Mount paid or expected to be paid for influencing or
of a piece of equipment rendered directly in the negotiation attempting to influence a covered Federal action; or
of a contract is allowable. Howey&ommunications with ~(2) A change in the person(s) or individual(s) influ
the intent to influence made by a professional (such as sencing or attempting to influence a covered Federal action;
licensed lawyer) or a technical person (such as a licensed”
accountant) are not allowable under this section unless the)f\/lem
provide advice and analysis directly applying their profes

sional or technical expertise and unless the advice or . . .
L . . . (c) The contractor shall require the submittal of a eerti
analysis is rendered directly and solely in the preparation,,. ‘. . . .
fication, and if required, a disclosure form, by any person

submission or negotiation of a covered Federal action. . .
- ) : : who requests or receives any subcontract exceeding
Thus, for example, communications with the intent to influ
ence made by a lawyer that do not provide legal advice or$100’000 under the Federal contract.
y Wy P 9 (d) All subcontractor disclosure forms (but not certifica

analysis_directly and solely related to the legal aspects of hi ions), shall be forwarded from tier to tier until received by
or her clients proposal, but generally advocate one propos he prime contractorThe prime contractor shall submit all
over another are not allowable under this section becaus%isclosure forms to the contractingicér at the end of the
the .Iawyer IS not .pro.wdmg .professpnal Iegal. SEIVICES. calendar quarter in which the disclosure form is submitted
Similarly, communications with the intent to influence by the subcontractorEach subcontractor certification shall

made by an engineer providing an engineering analysiSpg retained in the subcontract file of the awarding contrac
prior to the preparation or submission of a bid or proposal .

are not allowable under this section since the engineer is
providing technical services but not directly in the prepara 3804 Policy.

tion, submission or negotiation of a covered Federal action.  (3) The contracting dicer shall obtain certifications and

(iii) Requirements imposed by or pursuant to law disclosures as required by the provision at 52.203-1
as a condition for receiving a covered Federal award includecCertification and Disclosure Regarding Payments to
those required by law or regulation and any other require |nfluence Certain Federdransactions, prior to the award
ments in the actual award documents. of any contract exceeding $100,000.

(iv) Only those services expressly authorized by  (b) The contracting dicer shall forward a copy of all
subdivisions (c)(2)(i)(A) and (B) of this section are permit contractor disclosures furnished pursuant to the clause at
ted under this section. 52.203-12, Limitation on Payments to Influence Certain

(v) The reporting requirements of 3.803(a) shall FederalTransactions, to the fidial designated in accer
not apply with respect to payments of reasonable compendance with agency procedures, for subseqguent submission
sation made to regularly employedioérs or employees of  to CongressThe original of the disclosure shall be retained
a person. in the contract file.

(3) A change in the diter(s), employee(s), or
ber(s) of Congress contacted to influence or attempt to
influence a covered Federal action.
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3.805 Exemption. 3.902 Applicability .

The Secretary of Defense may exempt, on a case-by-case This subpart applies to all Government contracts.
basis, a covered Federal action from the prohibitions of this
section whenever the Secretary determines, in writing, that3.903 Policy.

such an exemption is in the national interddte Secretary Government contractors shall not disgegrdemote or
shall transmit a copy of such exemption to Congress imme otherwise discriminate against an employee as a reprisal fol
diately after making such a determination. disclosing information to a Member of Congress, or an
authorized dicial of an agency or of the Department of
3.806 Processing suspected violations. Justice, relating to a substantial violation of law related to a
Suspected violations of the requirements ofAbeshall contract (including the competition for or negotiation of a

be referred to the fi€ial designated in agency procedures. contract).

3.807 Civil penalties. 3.904 Procedures forfiling complaints.

Agencies shall impose and collect civil penalties- pur (a) Any employee of a contractor who believes that he or
suant to the provisions of the Program Fraud and Civil she has been discigad, demoted, or otherwise discrimi
RemediesAct, 31 U.S.C. 3803 (except subsection (c)), nated against contrary to the policy in 3.903 may file a
3804-3408, and 3812, insofar as the provisions therein arecomplaint with the Inspector General of the agency that

not inconsistent with the requirements of this subpart. awarded the contract.
(b) The complaint shall be signed and shall contain—
3.808 Solicitation provision and contract clause. (1) The name of the contractor;
(&) The provision at 52.20311 Certification and (2) The contract numbeif known; if not, a descrip

Disclosure Regarding Payments to Influence Certaintion reasonably sfitient to identify the contract(s)
Federal Transactions, shall be included in solicitations involved;

expected to exceed $100,000. (3) The substantial violation of law giving rise to the
(b) The clause at 52.203-12, Limitation on Payments to disclosure;
Influence Certain Federaransactions, shall be included in (4) The nature of the disclosure giving rise to the dis

solicitations and contracts expected to exceed $100,000. criminatory act; and
(5) The specific nature and date of the reprisal.
Subpart 3.9—Whistleblower Protections for

Contractor Employees 3.905 Procedures forinvestigating complaints.
(a) Upon receipt of a complaint, the Inspector General
3.900 Scope of subpat: shall conduct an initial inquiry If the Inspector General

This subpart implements 10 U.S.C. 2409 and 41 U.S.C.determines that the complaint is frivolous or for other rea
251, et seq. as amended by Sections 6005 and 6006 of thesons does not merit further investigation, the Inspector
FederaAcquisition Streamlining\ct of 1994 (Pub. L. 103-  General shall advise the complainant that no further action

355). on the complaint will be taken.
(b) If the Inspector General determines that the -com
3.901 Definitions. plaint merits further investigation, the Inspector General

“Authorized oficial of an agency” means anfigker or shall notify the complainant, contract@nd head of the
employee responsible for contracting, program manage contracting activity The Inspector General shall conduct an
ment, audit, inspection, investigation, or enforcement of any investigation and provide a written report of findings to the
law or regulation relating to Government procurement or head of the agency or designee.
the subject matter of the contract. (c) Upon completion of the investigation, the head of the

“Authorized oficial of the Department of Justice” means agency or designee shall ensure that the Inspector Genere
any person responsible for the investigation, enforcement,provides the report of findings to—

or prosecution of any law or regulation. (1) The complainant and any person acting on the
“Inspector General” means an Inspector General complainant's behalf;
appointed under the Inspector Genehat of 1978, as (2) The contractor alleged to have committed the vio

amended. In the Department of Defense that is the DODlIation; and

Inspector General. In the case of an executive agency that (3) The head of the contracting activity

does not have an Inspector General, the duties shall be per (d) The complainant and contractor shall blemfed the
formed by an dfcial designated by the head of the opportunity to submit a written response to the report of
executive agency findings within 30 days to the head of the agency or
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designee. Extensions of time to file a written response mayexpenses (including attorneys' fees and expert witnesses'
be granted by the head of the agency or designee. fees) that were reasonably incurred by the complainant for

(e)At any time, the head of the agency or designee mayor in connection with, bringing the complaint regarding the
request additional investigative work be done on the-com reprisal.

plaint. (b) Whenever a contractor fails to comply with an order

3.906 Remedies. the head of the agency or designee shall request the

(a) If the head of the agency or designee determines thapepartment of Justice to file an action for enforcement of
a contractor has subjected one of its employees to a reprisé“Ch order in the United States district court for a district in
for providing information to a Member of Congress, or an Which the reprisal was found to have occurred. In any
authorized dicial of an agency or of the Department of action brought under this section, the court may grant
Justice, the head of the agency or designee may take one @ppropriate relief, including injunctive relief and compen

more of the following actions: _ _ _ satory and exemplary damages.
Q) Order the contractor to takdiahative action to (c) Any person adversely fatted or aggrieved by an
abate the reprisal. order issued under this section may obtain review of the

_ -(2) Order the contractor to reinstate the person to theorder‘s conformance with the laand this subpart, in the
position that the person held before the reprisal, together

; . . . United States Court dhppeals for a circuit in which the
with the compensation (including back pay), employment - . .
benefits, and other terms and conditions of employment thatre‘)”Sal is alleged in the order to have occurred. No petition

would apply to the person in that position if the reprisal had S€€king such review may be filed more than 60 days after
not been taken. issuance of the order by the head of the agency or designee.

(3) Order the contractor to pay the complainant an Review shall conform to Chapter 7 Tfle 5, United States
amount equal to the aggregate amount of all costs andCode.
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